From: Brent Ferguson <Brent.Ferguson@aigroup.com.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 5 May 2020 11:48 AM

To: Chambers - Ross J <Chambers.Ross.j@fwc.gov.au>

Cc: Sophie Ismail <sismail@actu.org.au>; Sue-Anne Burnley <sue-anne@sda.org.au>
Subject: FW: AMENDED Fast Food Award draft determination

Dear Associate,

We refer to Ai Group’s application to vary the Fast Food Industry Award 2010 (AM20/20) and attach
an amended draft determination incorporating one minor drafting change to clause H.9.3.

In the original draft determination the word “consent” was used twice in the second sentence of the
clause. In the attached draft we have proposed the deletion of the second reference to consent. This
would not result in any substantive change to the operation of the proposed provision.

We understand this change to be supported by the SDA and ACTU.

Regards,

Brent Ferguson
National Manager — Workplace Relations Advocacy & Policy

51 Walker Street, North Sydney NSW 2060
[ T: 02 9466 5530

M: 0405 448 119

E: Brent.Ferguson@aigroup.com.au
www.aigroup.com.au
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AUSTRALIA
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FairWork
DRAFT DETERMINATION Commission

Fair Work Act 2009
s.157 — Application to vary a modern award to achieve the modern awards objective

Application by the Australian Industry Group
([insert matter number])

FAST FOOD INDUSTRY AWARD 2010
[MA000003]

[COMMISSION MEMBER(S)] [INSERT LOCATION AND DATE]

Application to vary the Fast Food Industry Award 2010

A.  Further to the decision [insert citation] issued by the Full Bench on [insert date], the above
award is varied as follows:

1. By inserting the following Schedule H:
Schedule H - Award flexibility during the COVID-19 Pandemic

H.1 The provisions of Schedule H are aimed at preserving the ongoing viability of
businesses and preserving jobs during the COVID-19 pandemic and not to set any
precedent in relation to award entitlements after its expiry date.

H.2 Schedule H operates from [insert date] (Date of Operation) until [insert date 3
months from the date of operation]. The period of operation can be extended on
application to the Fair Work Commission.

H.3 Schedule H applies to:

(@) employers who do not qualify for Jobkeeper payments and their employees;
and

(b) employees who do not qualify for Jobkeeper payments and their employers
in relation to those employees.

H.4 If an employer or employee become eligible for Jobkeeper payments, the terms of
Schedule H will not apply.

H.5 Schedule H is intended to assist in the continuing employment of employees.

H.6 During the operation of Schedule H, the following provisions apply.



H.7 Flexible part-time employment

While Schedule H is in operation and subject to written agreement between an
employee and their employer in accordance with clause H.7.2, the following
provisions will, in relation to that employee, operate instead of clause 12 of the
award until [insert date 3 months from the Date of Operation]:

H.7.1

H.7.2

H.7.3

H.7.4

H.7.5

H.7.6

A part time employee is an employee who:
(@) Works at least 8 but less than 38 hours per week;
(b) Has reasonably predictable hours of work; and

(c) Receives on a pro-rata basis, equivalent pay and conditions to those
of full-time employees.

The employer and the part-time employee will agree in writing upon:

(@) The number of hours of work which are guaranteed to be provided and
paid to the employee each week or, where the employer operates a
roster, the number of hours of work which are guaranteed to be
provided and paid to the employee over the roster cycle (the
guaranteed minimum hours); and

(b) The days of the week, and the periods in each of those days, when the
employee will be available to work the guaranteed minimum hours
(the employee’s agreed availability).

The employee must not be rostered to work less than 3 consecutive hours in
any shift.

The guaranteed minimum hours shall not be less than 8 hours per week.

Any change to the guaranteed minimum hours may only occur with written
consent of the part-time employee.

An employee may be offered ordinary hours in addition to the guaranteed
minimum hours (additional hours) within the employee’s agreed
availability. The employee may agree to work those additional hours
provided that:

(@) The additional hours are offered in accordance with clause 25 — Hours
of work and clause 26 — Overtime;

(b) The employee may not be rostered for work outside of the employee’s
agreed availability;

(c) agreed additional hours are paid at ordinary rates (including any
applicable penalties payable for working ordinary hours at the relevant
times);

(d) An employee will accrue entitlements such as annual leave and
personal/carer’s leave on agreed additional hours worked;



H.7.7

H.7.8

(e) The agreement to work additional hours may be withdrawn by a part-
time employee with 14 days written notice;

() The employee can refuse to work additional hours when offered on
any occasion;

() Additional hours worked in accordance with this clause are not
overtime; and

(h)  Where there is a requirement to work overtime in accordance with
clause 26, overtime rates will apply.

A part-time employee who immediately prior to the Date of Operation has
a written agreement with their employer for a regular pattern of hours is
entitled to continue to be rostered in accordance with that agreement, unless
that agreement is replaced by a new written agreement made in accordance
with clause H.7.2. If a part-time employee agrees to such a change, they
shall, beyond Schedule H ceasing operation, revert to the previously agreed
regular pattern of hours.

If an employee is first employed as a part-time employee during the
operation of Schedule H, their employment beyond Schedule H ceasing
operation will be on a casual basis unless:

(@) the employer and employee agree that the employee will be engaged
on a part-time basis beyond this period, and

(b) the employer and employee reach agreement in writing on the matters
identified in with clause 12.

H.8 Annual leave

H.8.1

H.8.2

H.8.3

H.8.4

H.8.5

Subject to clause H.8.3 and despite clauses 28.6, 28.7 and 28.8 (Annual
leave), an employer may, subject to considering an employee’s personal
circumstances, request the employee in writing to take paid annual leave.
Such a request must be made a minimum of 72 hours before the date on
which the annual leave is to commence.

If the employer gives the employee a request to take paid annual leave, and
complying with the request will not result in the employee having a balance
of paid annual leave of fewer than 2 weeks, the employee must consider the
request and must not unreasonably refuse the request.

A period of leave under clause H.8 must start before [insert date 4 weeks
from the Date of Operation] but may end after that date.

Clause H.8.1 does not prevent an employer and an employee from agreeing
to the employee taking annual leave at any time.

An employer can only request that an employee take annual leave pursuant
to this clause if the request is made for reasons attributable to the COVID-
19 pandemic or Government initiatives to slow the transmission of COVID-
19 and to assist the employer to avoid or minimise the loss of employment.



H.9 Close down

H.9.1

H.9.2

H.9.3

H.9.4

H.9.5

H.9.6

Subject to clauses H.9.2, H.9.3 and H.9.4, an employer may:

(@) Require an employee to take annual leave as part of a close down of
its operation or part of its operation by giving at least 48 hours' notice
or any shorter period of notice that may be agreed; and

(b) Where an employee has not accrued sufficient leave to cover part or
all of the close down, the employee is to be allowed paid annual leave
for the period for which they have accrued sufficient leave and given
unpaid leave for the remainder of the closedown.

Clause H.9.1 applies if the employer has decided to close down for reasons
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic or Government initiatives to slow
the transmission of COVID-19.

An employer must provide an employee with written notice of any
requirement to take annual leave or unpaid leave in accordance with this
clause. An employee is not required to take leave under clause H.9.1 unless
the employee is also advised in writing that the employer consents to a
dispute arising from the requirement being settled by the Fair Work
Commission through arbitration in accordance with clause 9.5 — Dispute
Resolution and section 739(4) of the Act.

Clause H.9.1 only permits an employer to require an employee to take
unpaid leave if it is in connection with a close down that commenced prior
to [insert date 4 weeks from the Date of Operation] and the unpaid leave
does not extend beyond [insert date 8 weeks from the Date of Operation].
Where an employee is placed on unpaid leave pursuant to H.9.1(b), the
period of unpaid leave will count as service for the purposes of relevant
award and NES entitlements.

If an employee is required to take unpaid leave pursuant to clause H.9.1(b)
and the employee makes a request to engage in:

(@) reasonable secondary employment;
(b) training;
(c) professional development;

during the period of unpaid leave, the employer must consider and not
unreasonably refuse the request.

H.10 Dispute resolution

Any dispute regarding the operation of Schedule H may be referred to the Fair Work
Commission in accordance with clause 9 — Dispute resolution.



2. Insert the following in clause 3.1:

Jobkeeper payment means a jobkeeper payment payable to an entity under section 14
of the Coronavirus Economic Response Package (Payments and Benefits) Rules 2020

3. By updating the table of contents and cross-references accordingly.
B.  This determination comes into operation on [insert date]. In accordance with s.165(3) of

the Fair Work Act 2009 this determination does not take effect until the start of the first
full pay period that starts on or after [insert date].

COMMISSION MEMBER




